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Evaluation of a property listed in the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites in Montgomery
County: Wilson H. Cecil House (M:10-63), 25110 Old Hundred Road, Dickerson, MD

Description: The Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) will receive public testimony, hold a
worksession, and provide recommendations to the Planning Board on the evaluation of the Wilson H.
Cecil House for its removal from the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites or listing in the Master
Plan for Historic Preservation.

Summary:

>

>

The Wilson H. Cecil House is likely a mid-nineteenth-century log house constructed by Wilson
Hammonds and Mary E. Cecil.

The Wilson H. Cecil House was one of the original properties listed in the Locational Atlas &
Index of Historic Sites in 1976.

The property is within the boundaries of the Master Plan for the Preservation of Agriculture and
Rural Open Space in Montgomery County (October 1980) and the Rustic Roads Functional
Master Plan Update (2023).

In June 2024, the Department of Permitting Services (DPS) contacted the Historic Preservation
staff regarding the unpermitted partial demolition of the Wilson H. Cecil House and new
construction. At this point, the property owner had removed the roof, two exterior walls, and all
interior components of the log house.

In December 2024, the property owner submitted a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to
demolish the Wilson H. Cecil House. This action triggers Sec. 24A-10, Moratorium on Alteration
or Demolition, and evaluation of the resource by the Historic Preservation Commission and
Planning Board.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC):

L.

Finds that the Wilson H. Cecil House lacks sufficient historic integrity to represent its period of
significance, and therefore, fails to satisfy the designation criteria outlined in 24A-3(b), Historic
Resources Preservation, Montgomery County Code;

Recommends that the Planning Board removes the Wilson H. Cecil House, 25110 Old Hundred
Road, Dickerson, from the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites.

Requests that the Planning Board requires the property owner to engage a dendrochronologist, in
consultation with Historic Preservation staff, to ascertain the date of construction for the log
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house and ensure its documentation as a condition for its removal from the Locational Atlas &
Index of Historic Sites.

Attachments:

Attachment A: Maps, Photographs, and Other Exhibits
Attachment B: Letter from Structural Engineering Resources, Inc.
Attachment C: MIHP Form (1974)

Background:

The Wilson H. Cecil House rests on an 18-acre parcel located on the west side of Old Hundred Road
between Comus and Hyattstown. The property was one of the original resources listed in the Locational
Atlas & Index of Historic Sites in 1976 and is within the boundaries of the Master Plan for the
Preservation of Agriculture and Rural Open Space in Montgomery County (October 1980) and the Rustic
Roads Functional Master Plan Update (2023). The County Council designated the majority of Old
Hundred Road as a “rustic road” in the Rustic Roads Functional Master Plan (1996) and the recent
update to the plan confirmed its classification.! Significant features of the road include its alignment that
follows the natural contour of the land, views of farmland and Sugarloaf Mountain, and mature trees.?
The road profile stated the following:

Old Hundred Road (MD 109) has outstanding vistas of farms and rural landscapes and
Sugarloaf Mountain. The portion of the road from Frederick Road (MD 355) to 1-270 was
designated rustic in the 1994 Clarksburg Master Plan & Hyattstown Special Study Area.
The section from Barnesville Road to I-270 was designated rustic in the 1996 Rustic Roads
Functional Master Plan....

...[When traveling north on Old Hundred Road,] Thurston Road (a rustic road) intersects
the road on the left. This section of road is curving and very wooded, with an enclosed tree
canopy. At the bottom of the hill, the W. H. Cecil House (Locational Atlas Site #10/63), a
log structure, is just visible on the left. Several modest frame farmhouses from the 1800s
are visible from the road on the right, including the Mort Cecil House (Locational Atlas
Site #10/64), the Carlisle/Byrne House (Locational Atlas Site #10/62), and the Edward
McElfresh House (Locational Atlas Site #10/60). The rustic portion of Old Hundred Road
ends at Peach Tree Road (an exceptional rustic road).?

See Attachment A, Figure 1, for a map that shows resources identified on Old Hundred Road in the Rustic
Roads Functional Master Plan Update (2023).

In June 2024, the Department of Permitting Services (DPS) contacted the Historic Preservation staff
regarding the unpermitted partial demolition of the Wilson H. Cecil House and new construction. At this
point, the property owner had removed the roof, two exterior walls, and all interior components of the log
house. Rebeccah Ballo, Historic Preservation Supervisor, notified the owner that the property is listed in
the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites and directed DPS to hold the permit as the proposed

! Montgomery Planning, Rustic Roads Functional Master Plan Update, Volume I1: The Plan (Wheaton, MD: M-
NCPPC, 2023): 32.

2 Montgomery Planning, Rustic Roads Functional Master Plan Update, Volume 2: Road Profiles (Wheaton, MD:
M-NCPPC, 2023): 267.

3 1bid, 267-269.
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changes were a “substantial alteration” to the resource. Staff consulted with the owner’s representative on
a potential remedy to return the property to compliance, but these efforts ceased after a structural engineer
hired by the property owner recommended demolition of the log house. The structural engineer found that
the existing log walls and foundation were structurally unsafe and incapable of supporting an additional
floor. See Attachment B for a copy of the letter from the structural engineer.

The property owner submitted a Historic Area Work Permit (HAWP) to demolish the Wilson H. Cecil
House. This action triggers Sec. 24A-10, Moratorium on Alteration or Demolition, that requires the
Planning Board to determine whether the historic resource will be, in all likelihood, designated as a
historic site listed in the Master Plan for Historic Preservation or removed from the Locational Atlas &
Index of Historic Sites. If removed from the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites, the Director of
Permitting will issue the permit to demolish the building (pending the review and approval of all other
typical permitting agencies). For this public hearing and worksession, the Historic Preservation
Commission shall utilize the designation criteria as outlined in 24A-3(b) to determine whether the
property satisfies design and architecture or historic and cultural significance, and make a
recommendation to the Planning Board on whether the property should be removed from the Locational
Atlas & Index of Historic Sites.

Site Description:

The Wilson H. Cecil House is situated on an 18-acre, irregular-shaped parcel on the west side of Old
Hundred Road, between Thurston Road and Slate Quarry Road. The log house is set back approximately
450 feet from the winding, rustic road, and elevated 20’ above it. Tree stands and foliage obscure most
views of the house from the public rights-of-way. A driveway provides access to the site from Old
Hundred Road, immediately crossing a culvert over an ephemeral stream of Little Bennett Creek.* The
driveway then splits, leading west to a gravel parking lot and north to the front of the log house, before
encircling the home.

The property includes at least eight outbuildings, most of which were constructed in the late twentieth
century. Approximately 150 feet south of the house is a small, early twentieth century, wood-frame
outbuilding (Attachment A, Figure 17). The building rests on a stone pier foundation, is clad in vertical
wood siding, and is capped with a gable roof.’ The remainder of the outbuildings are associated with the
landscaping and commercial uses for the property over the last 50 years. Other non-historic landscape
features include an excavated pond, located 205’ northeast of the house, which was installed in the 1970s.

See Attachment A, Figures 2-3, for aerials of the site.

Architectural Description:

The Wilson H. Cecil House consisted of multiple phases of construction, including:

1) the original two-story, side-gable log house;

2) atwo-story, side-gable, wood-frame side addition on the north elevation;

3) aone-story, shed roof, concrete block rear addition that extended the full-width of the west
elevation; and

4) a one-story, shed roof, enclosed front porch on the wood-frame addition.

4 Aerial photographs depict a gravel and dirt driveway that the property owners paved and expanded with asphalt in
2021.
5 Most of the stone piers have failed and were replaced with non-historic materials to support the building.
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The property owner demolished most of the original log house and wood-frame addition, particularly the
north and west walls of the log house and other architectural components. As a result, this architectural
description focuses on the original log section of the house, based on an analysis of existing conditions
and earlier photographs taken before the unpermitted demolition.

The Wilson H. Cecil House is a two-story, three-bay, single-pile log house likely built in the mid-
nineteenth century.® The house has a simple rectangular plan, approximately 27° x 20°. Logs from the
property were cut, hewn on the interior and exterior sides, but left round on the upper and lower sides, and
laid with a simple v-notch pattern. The original chinking consisted of stone and lime-based mortar,
though little of it remains visible. Former owners replaced most of the original chinking with concrete.
Since the mid-twentieth century, the exterior log walls have been exposed to the elements, but the
remnants of nails suggests that the building had wood weatherboard siding. Most log construction from
this era was covered with weatherboard to protect the logs from moisture and decay, and to improve the
appearance of the house.

The log walls rest on a rubble stone foundation with no coursing and supported a gable roof with
overhanging eaves. The original roof covering remains unclear, but consisted of corrugated tin sheets
before its demolition. The south elevation consists of an external end chimney with a stone base and brick
stack with a simple corbeled cap. The stone base remains, but the brick stack has been demolished. On the
south and north elevation, the wood-frame upper gable ends of the house featured replacement lap siding.

The three-bay facade (east elevation) consists of an off-center door flanked by two windows on the first
story and three windows on the second story. Unlike the first-story door, the middle window on the
second story was centrally located on the fagade. The non-historic, front, single-leaf door has nine-lights
and two-panels. The windows are six-over-six, double-hung, wood-sash. There is no fenestration on the
south elevation which is dominated by the gable end chimney, or on the north elevation encapsulated by
the wood-frame addition. The first story of the rear (west) elevation was obscured by the one-story,
concrete block addition, but the second story featured two small, six-light, wood casement windows.
Interior photographs taken prior to demolition showed openings in the log walls behind the later
additions. This included an opening for a single-leaf door on the north (side) elevation and an opening for
a single-leaf door and window on the west (rear) elevation. It is unknown if these opening were original
to the house or cut to provide access or light after the construction of the additions.

See Attachment A, Figures 7-16, for photographs of the house from 2008 and 2025.

Historic Context—Log Houses in Montgomery County:

Log construction dominated the built environment of Montgomery County in the 1700s, but declined in
popularity by the mid-nineteenth century. As stated in Places from the Past: The Tradition of Gardez
Bien in Montgomery County, Maryland.

The majority if Montgomery County houses built in the mid to late 1700s were constructed
of log. In 1783, 70% of the dwellings identified by material in the tax assessment were log
houses, typically 20-24 feet by 16 feet. Log construction originated among German and
Scotch-Irish in southeastern Pennsylvania. Beginning in the 1730s, they migrated to
Maryland and Virginia, bringing with them the tradition of building with log. ...By the

® The date of construction is based on the acquisition of the property by Cecil in 1857, but the building may have
been constructed by a previous owner or tenant. Research of the tax assessment records failed to confirm the date of
construction. Inconsistencies in the improvement values on the property may be due to the lack of perceived value
for log construction or the lack of improvements.
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mid-1800s, few county residents were building log houses. Exceptions were African
Americans who built log dwellings for over a decade after emancipation.’

There are at least 18 log houses (or sections of houses with log construction) listed in the Master Plan for
Historic Preservation. This includes the following properties:

Friendship (log section ca. 1786), 28110 Ridge Road (M: 10-1), two-story log house.

David Zeigler House (log section date of construction unknown), 25321 Frederick Road (M: 10-
57).

Moneysworth Farm (log section ca. 1800), Whelan Lane (M: 13-14), one-and-a-half-story log
house with siding.

Etchison-Warfield House (log section ca. 1800), 8251 Damascus Road (M: 14-03), one-and-a-
half-story log house.

Perry Etchison Farm (log section ca. 1850), 6935 Annapolis Road (M: 15-23), one-and-a-half-
story log house with siding.

William Phair House (ca. 1857), 2130 Spencerville Road (M: 15-75), two-story log house with
siding.

Old Chiswell Place (log section ca. 1800), 18125 Cattail Road (M: 17-9), one-and-a-half-story
log house with exposed logs.

Hilary and Matilda Pyles Farm (log section ca. 1800), 17300 Darnestown Road (M: 18-19), one-
story log house with siding.

Drury-Austin House (log section ca. 1700s), 16112 Barnesville Road (M: 18-42), one-and-a-half-
story log house with exposed logs.

Waring-Crawford Farm (log section ca. 1850), 19212 Forest Brook Road (M: 19-11), two-story
log house.

Grusendorf Log House (ca. 1850), Seneca State Park (M: 19-19), one-story log house.

Flint Hill IT (log section ca. 1800), 17800 Bowie Mill Road (M: 22-17), two-story log house with
siding.

The Oaks (ca. 1797), 5815 Riggs Road (M: 23-26), one-and-a-half story log house with siding.
Oakley Cabin (ca. 1820), 3610 Brookeville Road (M: 23-60), one-and-a-half-story log house with
exposed logs.

Holland Farm (log section ca. 1865), 2030 Brighton Dam Road (M: 23-81), two-story log house
with siding.

Sharon (ca. 1795), 18430 Brooke Groove Road (M: 23-93), two-story log house with siding.
Higgins Tavern and Hotel (log section ca. 1820), 16800 Georgia Avenue (M: 23-105), two-story
log house with siding.

Burton Log House (log section ca. 1800), 1507 Birmingham Road (M: 34-14), two-story log
house with siding.

7 Cavicchi, Clare Lise, Places from the Past: The Tradition of Gardez Bien in Montgomery County, Maryland
(Silver Spring, MD: M-NCPPC, 2001), 62-63.
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Historic Context—Property and its Owners:

Early Land Patents and John Willson Jr.%

The Wilson H. Cecil House and its present 18-acre parcel straddles three eighteenth-century land patents:
Willson’s Discovery, Mackey’s Chance, and The Labyrinth (formerly part of None Left).’ In 1754,
Lancelot Willson patented the 150-acre Willson’s Discovery.'® Two years later, in 1756, William
MacKay patented the 284-acre Mackay’s Chance, and, in 1788, Phillip Hammond Hopkins patented the
840-acre The Labyrinth.!! In the early nineteenth century, John Willson Jr. acquired numerous sections of
the Labyrinth including most of the subject property.'? This occurred in multiple land transactions, but he
likely acquired parts of the subject property as part of a 101-acre conveyance from Leaven Willson or a
110-acre conveyance from John Willson Sr., his father. '3

Members of the Willson family had resided near the Sugar Loaf Mountain along the road between
Hyattstown and Barnesville for over two generations. John Willson Sr. and Jonathan Willson, John
Willson Jr.’s father and grandfather, respectively, owned substantial plantations at a nearby land patent
called Wilson’s [sic] Inheritance. An advertisement in 1779 described their property:

That on which Jonathan Willson lives has a dwelling house and kitchen under the frame
roof, with a large stack of stone chimnies [sic] between them, a quarter for slaves with a
stone chimney, two large well built tobacco hoses, the one shingled the other double
covered, with a wheat floorin [sic] one of them, and serves as a barn. There are likewise
most other convenient outhouses and gardens, small orchards of apples, peaches and
cherries, a small meadow, fine pastures and fields...

The other whereon John Willson [Sr.], now lives, has a dwelling house with 4 rooms on
the lower floor, and 3 above the stairs, besides a passage room, with two brick chimnies
[sic], ad a cellar under it wall’d in with stone; it is quite finished and turned off in the
neatest manner, with wainscoting, plastering and painting. A new framed house adjoining,
20 by 16, very warm and convenient, and now made use of as a spinning room, with a good
kitchen and quarter with brick and stone chimnies [sic], three large tobacco houses, two of
them almost new; a new thatched barn, 60 by 24, besides a new thatched 60 feet cow house
and most of all the other convenient out-houses. .. !4

8 The spelling of Willson varies across documents with many referencing the spelling as “Wilson.”

% Thomas Witten received a warrant and Gerrard Hopkins the patent for the 1,110-acre None Left in 1768. Frederick
County Circuit Court, “None Left, Thomas Witten, 1110 Acres,” Unpatented Certificate 525, August 25, 1768,
http://plats.msa.maryland.gov.

10 Frederick County Circuit Court, “Resurvey on Willson’s Discovery, Lancelot Wilson, 150 3/4 Acres,” Unpatented
Certificate 751, April 24, 1754, http://plats.msa.maryland.gov.

! Frederick County Circuit Court, “Mackays Chance, William MacKay, 284 Acres,” Patented Certificate 256,
March 25, 1756, http://plats.msa.maryland.gov;

12 Additional archival research would need to be performed to determine the precise chain of title for the subject
property in the late seventeenth and early eighteenth centuries. The Willson family acquired numerous properties in
close vicinity to the subject property from Phillip Hammond Hopkins and other property owners.

13 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Leaven Wilson [sic] to John Wilson [sic], Jr.,” March 15, 1806, Liber M,
Folio 681, http://www.mdlandrec.net. Montgomery County Circuit Court, “John Willson, Sr. to John Willson, Jr.,”
December 11, 1813, Liber R, Folio 219, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

14 “Lands for Sale,” Maryland Journal and Baltimore Advertiser, September 21, 1779, GenealogyBank.
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John Willson Jr. never married and had considerable wealth. In 1813, he purchased from his father the
476-acre estate at Wilson’s Inheritance for $4,886.68, a considerable amount of money for the period. '
As noted in T. H. S. Boyd’s History of Montgomery County, Maryland, John Willson Jr. resided on his
family’s ancestral land and died ca. 1849.'° Given Willson's wealth and his extensive property
acquisitions in the area, it is unlikely that someone of his stature would have occupied the subject log
house. Like his grandfather and father, Willson owned a considerable number of enslaved persons in
addition to his extensive land holdings. It remains unknown, however, how he utilized the subject 18-acre

property.

After John Willson Jr.’s death, William Willson, his brother, and his three nephews, served as the
executors of his estate. In 1857, Otho Upton Cecil, acquired 91-acres (part of Mackey’s Chance and The
Labyrinth) from the executors.!” Two years later, in 1859, the executors sold 66-acres (part of the patents
The Labyrinth and Willson’s Discovery) including sections of the subject property to Wilson Hammond
Cecil for $625.1%

Wilson Hammond and Mary E. Cecil

Born in 1820, Wilson Hammond Cecil is the son of Samuel and Honora (nee Rhoades) Cecil. He married
Mary E. Smith in Frederick County, Maryland, in 1843." By 1850, the couple and their four children
rented property in the Clarksburg District of Montgomery County near their future home. Otho Upton and
Charlotte Cecil had acquired a 62-acre parcel (part of The Labyrinth patent) in 1838, and Wilson and
Mary Cecil may have resided on this property as well.?

Oral history suggests that Wilson and Mary Cecil constructed the subject log house upon acquisition of
the 66-acre property from the estate of John Willson Jr. in 1859.2! The Cecil family had a tradition of
building with log architecture. A court case described Samuel Cecil’s house, the father of Wilson
Hammond, as “...Iocated near the road from Hyattstown to Barnesville with a log weather-boarded house
and out buildings, a spring and apple orchard.”?*

The 1860 United States Federal Census provides additional information about the value and use of the
Wilson Hammond and Mary Cecil property. The census recorded the value of the plantation and personal
estate for William as $660 and $530, respectively.? The Cecils held at least four enslaved persons who

15 There are multiple land transactions between John Willson Jr. and Sr in 1814. Montgomery County Circuit Court,
“John Willson, Sr. to John Willson, Jr.,” March 14, 1814, Liber R, Folio 119, http://www.mdlandrec.net;
Montgomery County Circuit Court, “John Willson, Sr. to John Willson, Jr.,” December 11, 1813, Liber R, Folio
124, http://www.mdlandrec.net; Montgomery County Circuit Court, “John Willson, Sr. to John Willson, Jr.,”
December 11, 1813, Liber R, Folio 219, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

16 Boyds’ year of death for John Willson, Jr., differs from other sources that records Willson’s death as October 14,
1851. His will is probated in 1854. T.H. S. Boyd, The History of Montgomery County, Maryland (Baltimore, MD:
W. K Boyle, 1879), 100-101; “John Willson,” https://www.findagrave.com (accessed February 3, 2025).

17 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Executors of John Willson, Jr. to Otho U. Cecil,” March 24, 1857, Liber
JGH 6, Folio 21, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

18 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Executors of John Willson, Jr. to Wilson H. Cecil,” June 1, 1859, Liber JGH
7, Folio 481, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

19 “Wilson H. Cecil,” Maryland, U.S., Compiled Marriages, 1655-1850, Ancestry.com.

20 The 1860 United States Federal Census listed Wilson and Mary Cecil adjacent to his brother.

21 Ball, Walter Vancion, The Cecil Family of Maryland (Chevy Chase, MD: Self-Published, 1963), 62-63.

22 «“Abstracts from Equity Court Records of Frederick County, Equity CM-2, 475-586”
http://www.freepages.rootsweb.com (accessed February 3, 2025).

231860 United States Federal Census, “Wilson Cecil,” Ancestry.com.
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labored on the property.** The plantation had 40 acres improved and 26 unimproved. Livestock included
three horses, two milk cows, four cattle, and fourteen pigs. The farm produced 75 bushels of wheat, 15
bushels of rye, 150 bushels of corn, 50 bushels of oats, and 1,000 pounds of tobacco.? Twenty years
later, in 1880, the value of the farm increased to $1,200. While the family was still growing tobacco, they
cultivated only 600 pounds (a 40 percent decrease). The two principal crops remained corn and wheat.
The size of the property remained relatively unchanged except for the purchase of approximately six acres
from the former estate of Otho F. Cecil.?

Wilson H. Cecil remained on the property after the death of Mary, his wife, in 1890.2” Eleven years later,
in 1901, Cecil sold the 72-acre property to Everett H. and Julia M. Cecil, his son and daughter-in-law, for
$2,000.2® The deed noted the continued occupancy of the house by Cecil:

...and the further consideration of my having and holding for my separate use the room
which I the said William H. Cecil now occupy in the Dwelling house on premises hereby
conveyed and peaceable egress and ingress thereto as long as I the said Wilson H. Cecil
may life [sic].?’

Wilson H. Cecil, however, was not able to spend his final days at his home before his death in 1907.
Everett and Julia Cecil defaulted on a $1,800 mortgage, and in 1904, the 72-acre property sold at auction
to Jacob I. and Beatrice Johnson.*

Twentieth Century Development

After the death of Jacob Johnson, the executors of the estate sold the property to Trovilla W. and Welby
Carlisle for $3,500 in 1923.3! He operated a dairy farm on the 72-acre farm and an adjacent 187-acre
parcel. It is unknown who occupied the subject log house during his ownership as he lived on the adjacent
land. After his death in 1944, real estate and personal property advertisements detailed the livestock,
equipment, and improvements on the overall farm. Regarding the 72-acre property containing the subject
log house, the advertisement stated:

No. 2—This farm consists of 72 acres, more or less, and improved with 8 room weather-
boarded house with electricity therein, horse barn and all other necessary outbuildings.
There is a never failing spring of fine water nearby. This tract is well watered and is ideal
for dairying purposes.>?

241860 United States Federal Census, Slave Schedule, “Wilson Cecil,” Ancestry.com.

251860 United States Nonpopulation Census, Agriculture Schedule, “Wilson Cecil.”

26 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “John W. Cecil and Mary Cecil to Wilson H. Cecil,” July 1878, Liber EBP
21, Folio 20, http://www.mdlandrec.net; Montgomery County Circuit Court, “John W. Cecil to Wilson H. Cecil,”
August 28, 1882, Liber EBP 30, Folio 301, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

27 “Mary Ellen Smith Cecil,” Find A Grave Index, 1637-2012, Ancestry.com.

28 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Wilson H. Cecil to Everett H. Cecil,” January 14, 1901, Liber TD 16, Folio
324, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

2 Ibid.

30 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Rufus H. Davis to Jacob 1. and Beatrice Johnson,” October 13, 1904, Liber
JLB 180, Folio 48, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

31 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Executors of Jacob I Johnson to Trovilla W. Carlisle,” October 1, 1923,
Liber PBR 338, Folio 465, http://www.mdlandrec.net.

32 “Real estate and personal property,” Montgomery County Sentinel, August 3, 1944, Chronicling America.
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The house changed ownership multiple times over the next several decades and the property reduced to
60 acres in 1955 and 18 acres by 1965.%° Aerial photography between 1957 and 1972 showed the house in
its current form absent the front porch on the two-story addition and the one-story, concrete block, rear
addition (Attachment A, Figures 4-6). The property had a similar circulation network, but there was a
substantial barn to the south of the house. Different owners removed parts of the barn in the 1960s and the
remainder in the 1990s. Numerous other outbuildings were constructed and removed over the last 60
years. Mauricio Merino acquired the property in 2022.

Staff Evaluation:

The Montgomery County Planning Board listed the Wilson H. Cecil House as one of the original sites in
the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites when it was established in 1976. The list identified 878
individual sites and 29 historic districts primarily based on the age of the resource as 100 years old. Staff
included extant resources noted on the 1878 Atlas of Fifteen Miles around Washington including the
County of Montgomery, Maryland, but did not assess each resource’s architectural or historic
significance. Therefore, neither staff nor the Historic Preservation Commission have evaluated the Wilson
H. Cecil House against the designation criteria outlined in 24A-3(b) of the Montgomery County Code.

Staff finds that the subject property does not satisfy the designation criteria for historical and cultural
significance or architectural and design significance due to a lack of integrity from the partial demolition
of the log house. Historic resources must not only meet the designation criteria, but retain sufficient
integrity of design, materials, and workmanship to express its period of significance. The loss of major
sections of the log house paired with diminished structural integrity of the remaining sections does not
allow the Wilson H. Cecil House to convey its significance as a nineteenth-century log house. If fully
intact, the log house may have satisfied: Criterion 1(a), Historical and Cultural Significance: The historic
resource embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of construction; and
Criterion 2(a), Architectural and Design Significance: The historic resource embodies the distinctive
characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction. Log houses from the eighteenth and
nineteenth centuries are a rare resource in Montgomery County and Maryland. Without the log house, the
property fails to satisfy the designation criteria as it does not represent a nineteenth-century farmstead, nor
is it associated with individuals who made significant contributions to the county's heritage. Therefore,
the Wilson H. Cecil House should be removed from the Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites.

Archaeological Potential:

No archaeological surveys have been performed on the W.H. Cecil House property, and no archaeological
sites have been recorded. However, the property retains the potential for archaeological features.
Historical archaeological features could include remains of outbuildings, fence lines, trash middens or
other features in the vicinity of the Cecil house and farmstead. There may also be the remains of pre-
colonial campsites or other activity areas in the vicinity of a tributary of Little Bennett Creek.

33 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Albert M. Bouic to M. Frank Ruppert,” September 26, 1945, Liber CKW
983, Folio 343, http://www.mdlandrec.net; Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Carlyle M. and Anne Bell Sole to
Marshall N. Poteat and Mary V. Poteat,” June 16, 1955, Liber CKW 2077, Folio 222, http://www.mdlandrec.net;
Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Mary V. Daisey and Harvey J. Daisey to Ferdinand J. Mack and Dorothy F.
Mack,” August 12, 1965, Liber CKW 3397, Folio 231, http://www.mdlandrec.net.
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Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC):

1. Finds that the Wilson H. Cecil House lacks sufficient historic integrity to represent its period of
significance, and therefore, fails to satisfy the designation criteria outlined in 24A-3(b), Historic
Resources Preservation, Montgomery County Code;

2. Recommends that the Planning Board removes the Wilson H. Cecil House, 25110 Old Hundred
Road, Dickerson, from the Locational Atlas & Index of Historic Sites.

3. Requests that the Planning Board requires the property owner to engage a dendrochronologist, in
consultation with Historic Preservation staff, to ascertain the date of construction for the log
house and ensure its documentation as a condition for its removal from the Locational Atlas &
Index of Historic Sites.
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Attachment A: Maps, Photographs and other Exhibits
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Map 72: Old Hundred Road
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Approved and Adopted December 2023

Old Hundred Road | 269

Figure 1: Map of Old Hundred Road, Rustic Roads Functional Master Plan Update, 2023. The Wilson H.

Cecil is circled in red.
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Figure 2: Map showing the Wilson H. Cecil House, 25110 Old Hundred Road. The red arrow points to
the subject log house.
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Figure 3: Aerial view of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 25110 Old Hundred Road. The red arrow pintsto
the subject log house.
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Figure 3: Martenet and Bond's map of Montgomery County, Maryland, 1865. The red arrow points to the
Wilson H. Cecil House, spelled as “Cissell” on the map.
Source: Library of Congress.
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Figure 4: Aerial view of the Wilson H. Cecil House property, 1957. The red arrow points to the subject
log house and addition, the blue arrow to a small, extant outbuilding, and the yellow arrow to a large,
demolished barn.

Source: HistoricAerials.com.
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Figure 5: Aerial view of the Wilson H. Cecil House property, 1972. The red arrow points to the subject

log house and addition, the blue arrow to a small, extant outbuilding, and the yellow arrow to demolished
barns.

Source: Vintage Aerial.
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Flgur 6: Aerll Vie of t WllsdnuI:I-. Cecil Hose rope, 19. heredo poits to the subject
log house and addition, the blue arrow to a small, extant outbuilding, and the yellow arrow to demolished
barns.

Source: Vintage Aerial.
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igure 7: View of the fagade (east elevation) of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2008.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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igureS: View of the outh elevation of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2008.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 9: View of the south and west (rear) elevations of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2008.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 10: View of the interior of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2008.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 11: View of the interior of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2008. The opening is in the north elevation
of the log house obscured by the later addition.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Flgure 12 View of the fag:ade (east elevation) of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2025.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 13: View of the south (sid) and west (rear) elevations of the Wilson H. Cecil Houe, 2025.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 14: View of the interior of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2025.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 15: View of the interior of the Wilson H. Cecil House, 2025.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Figure 16: View of the interior of the Wil
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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son H. Cecil House, 2025. Note the insect damage to the logs.
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Flgre 17: View of the erl twentieth céntury outbuilding, 2025.
Source: Montgomery Planning.
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Attachment B: Letter from Structural Engineering Resources, Inc.
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A Structural Engineering RESGLITEES, LLC
24 Mortin Fourth Street » Geftysburg, PA 17325

i ﬁ ﬂ ﬁ Phone F17-337-1335 » waww SERLLC .us

Residenfial and Commercial Structural Engineering
ST l{‘U C T U R A ]‘: Licensed Professional Engineers
E NGINEERING Pennsylvania » Maryland « Virginia » We:st Virginia
EEsovuRrcEs, LLC Connecticut » Delaware »« Georgia » Indiana « Maines « Missour

MHew Jersey = New York » North Carcling « Ohic « Vermont « Wisconsin

Movember 27, 2024

Mauricio Merino
25110 Old Hundred Road
Dickerson, MD 20842

Re:  Existing Structure Review

25110 Old Hundred Road
Dickerson, MD 20842

Diear Mr. Merino:

| visited the above referenced home on Movember 20, 2024, to determine the structural integrity of
the log home portion of the existing structure, its foundation, and its capability to support the
proposed added 2™ floor and roof.

| examined the existing log structure, footings, and attached stone chimney.

The existing logs are in an advanced state of rot and decay, and cannot be economically repaired.
There is not a sufficient foundation under the existing log bearing walls, it appears the original
foundation was rubble stone.

| have determined the the existing log walls, foundations, and stone chimney are structurally unsafe
and incapable of supporting the added weight of the 2™ floor and roof.

The existing log walls, rubble foundations, and chimney shall be removed and replaced with
reinforced concrete footings and foundation walls to support the new construction.

Additionally, all existing logs shall be removed at the new framing location. Specifically at the
locations where concrete slab has been poured over exisiing wood logs. And all beams in the new
framing shall have continuous bearing from end of beam to foundation below.

The new framing that wias constructed at the time of my visit appeared to be in general
conformance with the approved building plans. However, construction was not compelted at the
time of my site visit.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience.

.illl:.:ilil
7 S OF MAg e
ards, ) * '{ : . . _
acob Fenby, PE, Structural Engineer § %= 2% Prafessional Certification. I hereby certify

': that these documents were prepared or

A T = approved by me. and that I am a duly licenzed
SN e "'E:' prafessional engineer under the laws af
.—PAZD? ~E~ ‘> the State qf Mavyland, Licenze No. 62337,

’-ﬁ“%”m W Expirarion Date: 01-28-2020.

L)
gt
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Attachment C: MIHP Form (1974)
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M #10-63
1000635505

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

COMMON:

AND/OR HISTORIC:

W. H. g;ssii House
[2. LOCATION H L R o
STREET ANDC NUMBER:

Hyattstown-Comus Road (Rte. 109)

CITY OR TOWN:

Comus
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Montgomery
{3. CLASSIFICATION : -
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
w
(Check One) OWNERSHIP STATUS TO THE PUSBLIC
z
3 Districr @K Building ({0 Public Public Acquisition: B Occupied Yes:
© 3 Sire {3 Structure M Private O in Process {J Uneccupied 0 Restricted
- O Object (O Both O Being Considered [ Preservation work O Unrestricred
- in progress K No
L PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
_ > 3 Agricuitural ] Government J Pork 3 Tranaportation [ Comments
(4 [0 Commaercial 3 Industrial B Privote Residcrce [J Other (Specity)
[ {3 Educational O Military ] Religious
v ] Entertainment 0 Museum [ Scientific
= !4 OWNER OF PROPERTY
—-— OWNER’S NAME:
u" STREET AND NUMBER:
w
v CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
[5:. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION R
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:
Montgomery County Courthouse
STREET AND NUMBER:
CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Rockville Maryland
Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pq. #)
REPRESENTATION [N EXiSTING SURVEYS =~ . =
TITLE OF SURVEY: =
None
DATE OF SURVEY: (J Federal [J Stote ] County [ Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OCR TOWN: STATE:
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[7. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)
3 Excellent a Good O Foir (3 Detericrated (3 Ruins O -Unexposed
CONDITION
(Check One) (Check One)
K Altered ] Unoltered [ Moved x Origina! Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a two story, log structure with a three
bay main (south) facade. The one story stone chimney on
the west end has a free-standing brick stack. The logs,
now exposed, were covered with clapboards, as evidenced
by nails for furring strips. They are laid up with

inverted V-notches.

w
The east addition, also two stories, may be log as m
well., It may have had a central chimney, evidence for which m
appears in the seams in the roofing. This wing is now covered -
with aluminum siding. :
o
X c
0

- i
o
. z
wr
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INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

M 1G-63

[8. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check One or More ae Appropriste)

y Lolumbian

[J 15th Century

[ 16th Century
{3 17th Century

D 18th Century
‘ 19th Contury

] 20th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (Tf Applicable end Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal [ Education
3 Prehistoric [ Enginesring
O Historic O Industry
[ Agriculture O Invention
[ Architecture O Lendscape
O Am Architecture
] Commerce O Literature
3 Communications O Mititary
[ Conservation O Music

00 0040 oo

Political
Religion/Phi.
losophy
Science
Sculpture
Social/Human-
itorion
Theater

Tronsportation

{3 Urban Planning
[ Other (Specify)

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE




PERTRTE S S Saian b o E R e it S R S i AT e A e A A M S
v Nl R
LTe D
E9. MAJIOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES . IR s - D o
F10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA ) v
LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES -
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Secoads
NW L] » [ ] - . - [+ . L . o . -
NE o . - (-] . -
SE ] . L (-] " -
_Sw Q . L] -3 ’ "
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:
wv
-Acreage Justification: m
i
. m
|
i
-—
z
(73
-
L ) P
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES -
STATE: COUNTY
(@]
STATE: COUNTY: -
STATE: COUNTY: QO
x
ATE: COUNTY:
STATE wn

Fi1. FORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND TITLE:

Christopher Owens, Park Historian

ORGANIZATION DATE

M-NCPPC 23 Apr 74

STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Silver Spring Maryland

12, . . s :
F=-‘]State Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [ State [J Local [

Signature
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NAME/U'# fp-¢3  wi#. cécrc meuse

LOCATION
FACADE S
PHOTO TAKEN
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